Petitioner,

vs

## STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

[Respecting a Decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal Announcing Conflict with a Decision of Another District Court of Appeal Rendered in the Petitioner's Direct Appeal in the Circuit Court for the 17th Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida, Case #88-15979CFA, for Review by the Fourth District Court of Appeal an Adverse Jury Verdict, Appeal #91-905]

PETITIONER'S JURISDIC	CTIONAL BRIEF
Atto: 432   Ft. ]	E. MORGAN rney at Law N.E. 3rd Avenue Lauderdale, FL 33301 ) 523-5296
	rney for Petitioner #444677

##

## PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner herein is the Appellant below in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and was the Defendant in the Circuit Court at trial.

Respondent herein is the Appellee below, and was the Plaintiff at trial.

Exhibits comprise the attached Appendix and are referred to hereinafter as Exhibit 'A', 'B', 'C', or 'D' as the case may be.

## TABLE OF CASES

ALEXANDER v STATE, 575 So2d 1370 (4DCA 1991)		7	
BRADLEY v STATE, 513 So2d 112 (Fla 1987)		7	
CHERRY V STATE, 572 So2d 521 (1DCA 1990)	З,	4, 7	
CROSSLEY v STATE, 17 FLW S179 (Fla. 1992)		7	
FRANKLIN v STATE, 590 So2d 476 (1DCA 1991)		7	
LACUE v STATE, 562 So2d 388 (4DCA 1990)		7	
MILLS v STATE, 17 FLW D798 (4DCA 1992)		7	
WILLIAMS v STATE, 488 So2d 63 (Fla 1986)		7	
Additional Authorities			
Article V, section 3(b)(3), Fla Const		7	
Fl.R.App.Pr. 9.030(2)(iv)and (vi)		7	
Fl.R.App.Pr. 9.120.		7	

Fl.R.App.Pr. 9.120.

-

• •

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner was convicted in felony circuit court in Broward County, Florida, in case #88-15979CFA, the 17th Judicial Circuit for trafficking and conspiracy to traffick in cocaine, after jury trial. He duly prosecuted his appeal in the Fourth District Court of Appeal, raising eight points of error therein. The district court rendered its written opinion 25 March 1992 affirming on all points. (Exhibit 'A' attached hereto]. The district court wrote only as to the Point I on appeal respecting the trial court sua sponte answering a jury's question during deliberations but without giving Petitioner, or his counsel, an opportunity to know the nature of the question or to participate in forming a response to such question.

The district court in its written opinion on the said point acknowledged that it's holding expressly and directly conflicted with the First District Court of Appeal upon the same issue, citing therefor to Cherry v State, 572 So2d 521 (1DCA 1990).

Petitioner on 6 April 1992 served and filed his 'Motion for Re-Hearing and Clarification' [Exhibit 'B' attached hereto]. The district court denied same by order dated 11 May 1992 [Exhibit 'C' attached hereto].

Petitioner on 31 May 1992 served and filed his 'Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction' in the Fourth District Court of Appeal for review of the certified conflict in this Court in order to resolve same [Exhibit 'D' attached hereto].

Pursuant to the aforesaid the instant brief on jurisdiction is submitted.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT FOR JURISDICTION BEING ACCEPTED

The Fourth District Court of Appeal in its written opinion expressly acknowledges that it's holding in Petitioner's case conflicts with the reasoning and holding in the First District Court of Appeal's case of CHERRY v STATE, 572 So2d 521 (1DCA Specifically, the district court in Petitioner's case 1990). recognized that the trial court erred when it excluded Petitioner from an opportunity to participate in forming the appropriate response to a question of "law" posited by the jury during that jury's deliberations (viz 'what is the law of trafficking). The district court further recognized that decisions in this Court, and in the First District Court of Appeal as aforesaid, have regarded such error to be per se reversible and not subject to the harmless error doctrine. However, and notwithstanding such extant authority the district court determined to announce a contrary position to the effect that such error is not per se reversible but is rather subject to harmless error analysis. The court then examined the record and determined beyond a reasonable doubt that the error did not affect the verdicts. The district court then further considered the merits of the objection made to the re-instruction (which was allowed to be posed at all only after the jury was sent back to deliberate as re-instructed sua sponte by the trial judge) and determined that the judge had correctly reinstructed the jury and did not have to include the "law" as to entrapment vis-a-vis the crime of trafficking in cocaine and its bearing on the latter offense.

The Fourth District Court of Appeal in Petitioner's case has plainly embarked on a rationale and standard in conflict with the due processes of law heretofore recognized in the other district courts of appeal, in its own prior opinions, and in the decisions of this Court in a very significant, sensitive context of a criminal trial. Such a departure from established precedent ought be addressed by this Court. The discretionary jurisdiction of this Court is specifically designed therefor when a district court of appeal's decision expressly and directly certifies conflict with another district court of appeal's decision upon the point in issue, such as sub judice.

t

Therefore, this Court ought accept jurisdiction and dispose of the conflict.

#### BASIS FOR JURISDICTION

THE DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE CASE OF MILLS V STATE, 17 FLW D798 (4DCA 1992), CERTIFIES THAT IT'S HOLDING EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS DECISION IN CHERRY V STATE, 572 So2d 521 (1DCA 1990), AND AS CONFLICTS DIRECTLY WELL AND EXPRESSLY WITH OTHER DECISIONS INCLUDING ITS OWN, AND AS WELL WITH DECISIONS OF THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

The Fourth District Court of Appeal issued its written decision affirming on direct appeal in this cause (Appeal #91-905) the adverse verdict, judgment, and sentence rendered in the circuit court (L.T. case #88-15979CFA) for the 17th Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida. See Exhibit 'A' attached hereto. The district court affirmed as to all issues on appeal, but wrote its decision explaining affirmance as to only one issue. That issue involves the right of the defendant to participate in the response to be given to a jury when that jury poses a question to the court during its deliberations. The Fourth District Court of Appeal in its written opinion recognizing "the trial judge violated the rule when he failed to give defense counsel the opportunity to be heard" [Exhibit 'A', page 3] but affirming the adverse jury verdict declared: "Therefore, in direct conflict with Cherry [v State, 572 So2d 52] (IDCA 1990)], we hold that the harmless error rule applies where defense counsel and the defendant have notice of a jury question but the trial judge fails to give defense counsel the opportunity

to be heard as to the appropriate response". Exhibit 'A', page 4. [Mills v State, 17 FLW D798, 799 (4DCA 1992)].

In addition to CHERRY v STATE, supra, the district court's opinion and holding sub judice directly and expressly conflicts with FRANKLIN v STATE, 590 So2d 476 (1DCA 1991); its own decisions - ALEXANDER v STATE, 575 So2d 1370 (4DCA 1991)("a trial judge may not respond to a jury's request for additional instructions without both counsel being present and having an opportunity to participate in the action to be taken by the court. Violation of that rule is per se reversible error") and LACUE v STATE, 562 So2d 388 (4DCA 1990)(same); and decisions of this Court, see BRADLEY v STATE, 513 So2d 112 (Fla 1987), and WILLIAMS v STATE, 488 So2d 63 (Fla 1986). See Exhibit 'B', the motion for rehearing, attached hereto.

This Court has discretionary jurisdiction to resolve such conflict pursuant to Article V, section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution. CROSSLEY v STATE, 17 FLW S179 (Fla. 1992). See Fl.R.App.Pr. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv)and (vi); 9.120.

Petitioner submits that if this Court finds it has jurisdiction then it ought exercise its discretion to entertain the case on its merits. The issue as to which conflict is apparent is an important feature of criminal trials, involving as it does the de facto participation of an accused in such trials' important decisions as well as the perception of the accused that he is a contributing and respected participant in the resolution of the case in accord with due process of law. It is submitted that to condone such 'exclusion' of an accused's participation

during trial, particularly in such a sensitive context as jury instructions, undermines the integrity of the courts and citizens' (including defendants) confidence in same. Accordingly, the clear announcement of this Court's posture thereon is of high significance. Therefore, this Court ought exercise it's discretion to accept jurisdiction to determine the merits.

## CONCLUSION

t

WHEREFORE, this Court ought accept jurisdiction and resolve the express and direct conflict, and determine any and all other matters appropriate to the cause.