IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 79,973 CLERK, SMPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

CHARLES MILLS,

Petitioner,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT

OF APPEAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, FOURTH DISTRICT

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

JOAN FOWLER Senior Assistant Attorney General, Bureau Chief Florida Bar No. 339067 111 Georgia Avenue, Suite 204 West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 Telephone: (407) 837-5062

Counsel for Respondent

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Petitioner was the Appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the defendant in a criminal prosecution from the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Broward County. The Respondent, State of Florida, was the Appellee and the prosecution, respectively in the lower courts. In this Brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

The symbol "PA" will be used to refer to Exhibit A of Petitioner's Appendix, which is a conformed copy of the District Court's opinion.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent does not accept Petitioner's statement of the case and facts. Respondent would instead rely on the opinion of the District Court of Appeal for its statement of the case and facts (PA). Further, Respondent would point out that the District Court did not "acknowledge[] that it's (sic) holding expressly and directly conflicted with the First District Court of Appeal upon the same issue" as stated in Petitioner's statement of the case and facts.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Respondent respectfully requests this Court decline to take jurisdiction in this case. Petitioner has failed to demonstrate that the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal expressly and directly conflicts with any decision of this Court, other District Courts, or that it falls under any of the subdivisions as provided by Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2), or Art. V, Section 3(b) Fla.Const. (1980). Conflict has not been established with Cherry v. State, 572 So.2d 521 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990).

ARGUMENT

PETITIONER IMPROPERLY INVOKES
THE DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION
OF THIS COURT WHERE THE DECISION
OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF
APPEAL DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AND
DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH DECISIONS
OF THIS COURT OR OF OTHER
DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL

Petitioner seeks review through conflict jurisdiction pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b) Fla.Const. (1980) Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(IV), which provides that the discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court may be sought to review a decision of district court of appeal which expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. Respondent respectfully requests this Honorable Court decline to take jurisdiction in this case, since Petitioner presents no legitimate basis for the invocation of this Court's discretionary jurisdiction.

Petitioner's allegation that the opinion of the Fourth District Court in the instant case conflicts on the same question of law with Cherry v. State, 572 So.2d 521 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990) is without merit. A reading of the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal makes it abundantly clear that there is no express and direct conflict. The court, after applying State v. DiGuilio, 491 So.2d 1129 (Fla. 1986) to the situation, found that a harmless error rule applied. The court stated: "Therefore, in direct conflict with Cherry, we hold that the harmless error rule applies where defense counsel and

the defendant have notice of a jury question but the trial judge fails to give defense counsel the opportunity to be heard as to the appropriate response." (PA 4). The District Court's statement regarding direct conflict is misplaced. Cherry involved a situation where defense counsel did not have notice and an opportunity to be heard regarding the appropriate response to a jury question. Cherry is distinguishable from the case at bar since here counsel was given notice.

In order for two court decisions to be in express and direct conflict for the purpose of invoking this Court's discretionary jurisdiction under Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), the decisions should speak to the same point of law, in factual contexts of sufficient similarity to permit the inference that the result in each case would have been different had the deciding court employed the reasoning of its brother or father court. See generally Mancini v. State, 312 So.2d 732 (Fla. 1975). In Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980), this Court defined the limited parameters of its conflict review as follows:

This Court may only review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or the Supreme Court on the same question of law. The dictionary definitions of the terms 'express' include: 'to represent in words; to give expression to.' 'Expressly' is defined: 'in an express manner.' Websters Third New International Dictionary (1961 ed. unabr.)

See also Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986); see generally Ansin v. Thurston, 101 So.2d 808 (Fla. 1958);

Withlacoochee River Electric Co-op v. Tampa Electric Co., 158 So.2d 136 (Fla. 1963). It is not appropriate to allege conflict based on the contents of a dissenting opinion. Jenkins.

Petitioner has not established the direct and express conflict from the face of the opinions necessary for this court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based on the foregoing argument and the authorities cited therein, Respondent respectfully requests this Honorable Court decline to accept discretionary jurisdiction in the instant case.